

including letters of recommendation, must be compiled and submitted in one complete package. All those interested in membership, including current members whose terms are expiring, must follow the same nomination process. Members may not appoint deputies or alternates.

Members of the Committee serve without compensation. However, while away from their homes or regular places of business in the performance of services for the Committee as approved by the NPS, members may be allowed travel expenses, including per diem in lieu of subsistence, in the same manner as persons employed intermittently in Government service are allowed such expenses under section 5703 of title 5 of the United States Code.

Authority: 54 U.S.C. 100906.

Alma Ripps,

Chief, Office of Policy.

[FR Doc. 2019-19062 Filed 9-3-19; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4312-52-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation No. 337-TA-1172]

Certain Filament Light-Emitting Diodes and Products Containing Same Institution of Investigation

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a complaint was filed with the U.S. International Trade Commission on July 30, 2019, under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, on behalf of The Regents of the University of California of Oakland, California. The complaint alleges violations of section 337 based upon the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain filament light-emitting diodes and products containing same by reason of infringement of certain U.S. Patent No. 7,781,789 (“the ‘789 patent”); U.S. Patent No. 9,240,529 (“the ‘529 patent”); U.S. Patent No. 9,859,464 (“the ‘464 patent”); and U.S. Patent No. 10,217,916 (“the ‘916 patent”). The complaint further alleges that an industry in the United States exists as required by the applicable Federal Statute.

The complainant requests that the Commission institute an investigation and, after the investigation, issue a limited exclusion order, and cease and desist orders.

ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for any confidential information contained therein, is available for inspection during official business hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Room 112, Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 205-2000. Hearing impaired individuals are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission’s TDD terminal on (202) 205-1810. Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at (202) 205-2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server at <https://www.usitc.gov>. The public record for this investigation may be viewed on the Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) at <https://edis.usitc.gov>.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Pathenia M. Proctor, The Office of Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, telephone (202) 205-2560.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Authority: The authority for institution of this investigation is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, and in section 210.10 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2018).

Scope of Investigation: Having considered the complaint, the U.S. International Trade Commission, on August 28, 2019, *ordered that*—

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, an investigation be instituted to determine whether there is a violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of section 337 in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain products identified in paragraph (2) by reason of infringement of one or more of claims 3, 5, 9, 12, 13, 15, 18, 28, 31, 33, 37, 40, 41, 43, 47, and 56 of the ‘789 patent; claims 1, 3, 4, 6, 8-10, 12, 13, 15, 16, 18, 20, 21, and 24 of the ‘529 patent; claims 1, 2, 4, 5, 7-12, 14, 15, and 17-20 of the ‘464 patent; and claims 1, 5-9, 13, 14, 18-22, and 26 of the ‘916 patent, and whether an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337;

(2) Pursuant to section 210.10(b)(1) of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10(b)(1), the plain language description of the accused products or category of accused products, which defines the scope of the investigation, is “light bulbs containing

filament LEDs and lighting products containing light bulbs containing filament LEDs”;

(3) For the purpose of the investigation so instituted, the following are hereby named as parties upon which this notice of investigation shall be served:

(a) The complainant is:

The Regents of the University of California, 1111 Franklin Street, Oakland, CA 94607.

(b) The respondents are the following entities alleged to be in violation of section 337, and are the parties upon which the complaint is to be served:

Amazon.com, Inc., 410 Terry Avenue North, Seattle, WA 98258.

Amazon.com Services, Inc., 410 Terry Avenue North, Seattle, WA 98109.

Bed Bath & Beyond Inc., 650 Liberty Avenue, Union, NJ 07083.

IKEA of Sweden AB, Tulpanvagen 8, Almhult 343 34, Sweden.

IKEA Supply AG, Grüssenweg 15, CH-4133 Pratteln, Switzerland.

IKEA Distribution Services Inc., 420 Alan Wood Road, Conshohocken, PA 19428.

IKEA North America Services, LLC, 420 Alan Wood Road, Conshohocken, PA 19428.

Target Corporation, 1000 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis, MN 55403.

Walmart Inc., 702 SW 8th Street, Bentonville, AR 72716.

(c) The Office of Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Suite 401, Washington, DC 20436; and

(4) For the investigation so instituted, the Chief Administrative Law Judge, U.S. International Trade Commission, shall designate the presiding Administrative Law Judge.

Responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation must be submitted by the named respondents in accordance with section 210.13 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 19 CFR 201.16(e) and 210.13(a), such responses will be considered by the Commission if received not later than 20 days after the date of service by the Commission of the complaint and the notice of investigation. Extensions of time for submitting responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation will not be granted unless good cause therefor is shown.

Failure of a respondent to file a timely response to each allegation in the complaint and in this notice may be deemed to constitute a waiver of the right to appear and contest the allegations of the complaint and this notice, and to authorize the

administrative law judge and the Commission, without further notice to the respondent, to find the facts to be as alleged in the complaint and this notice and to enter an initial determination and a final determination containing such findings, and may result in the issuance of an exclusion order or a cease and desist order or both directed against the respondent.

By order of the Commission.

Issued: August 28, 2019.

Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2019-18971 Filed 9-3-19; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Antitrust Division

Notice Pursuant to the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993—Countering Weapons of Mass Destruction

Notice is hereby given that, on April 24, 2019, pursuant to Section 6(a) of the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993, 15 U.S.C. 4301 *et seq.* (“the Act”), Countering Weapons of Mass Destruction (“CWMD”) has filed written notifications simultaneously with the Attorney General and the Federal Trade Commission disclosing changes in its membership. The notifications were filed for the purpose of extending the Act’s provisions limiting the recovery of antitrust plaintiffs to actual damages under specified circumstances. Specifically, Alpha Space Test and Research Alliance, LLC, Houston, TX; AQUILA, Albuquerque, NM; Aurora Flight Sciences Corp., Manassas, VA; Blueforce Development, Corp., Newburyport, MA; Draeger, Inc., Telford, PA; Field Forensics, Inc., Saint Petersburg, FL; Interclipse, Inc., Annapolis Junction, MD; Kansas State University, Manhattan, KS; Mirion Technologies (Canberra) Inc., Oak Ridge, TN; Mirion Technologies (MGPI), Smyrna, GA; NuSAFE, Inc., Oak Ridge, TN; Physical Optics Corporation, Torrance, CA; QRC, LLC dba QRC Technologies, Fredericksburg, VA; Rhodium Scientific, LLC, San Antonio, TX; SpectraGenetics, Inc., Pittsburgh, PA; Spectrum Photonics, Honolulu, HI; Subsystem Technologies, Inc., Arlington, VA; Surface Optics Corporation, San Diego, CA; SURVICE Engineering Company, LLC, Belcamp, MD; Teledyne Brown Engineering, Inc., Huntsville, AL; Valitus Technologies, Inc., Corona, CA; and WGS Systems,

LLC, Frederick, MD, have been added as parties to this venture.

Also, EcoHealth Alliance, New York, NY, has withdrawn as a party to this venture.

No other changes have been made in either the membership or planned activity of the group research project. Membership in this group research project remains open, and CWMD intends to file additional written notifications disclosing all changes in membership.

On January 31, 2018, CWMD filed its original notification pursuant to Section 6(a) of the Act. The Department of Justice published a notice in the **Federal Register** pursuant to Section 6(b) of the Act on March 12, 2018 (83 FR 10750).

The last notification was filed with the Department on April 24, 2019. A notice was published in the **Federal Register** pursuant to Section 6(b) of the Act on June 17, 2019 (84 FR 28073).

Suzanne Morris,

Chief, Premerger and Division Statistics Unit, Antitrust Division.

[FR Doc. 2019-19075 Filed 9-3-19; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4410-11-P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Antitrust Division

Notice Pursuant to the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993—Cooperative Research Group on ROS-Industrial Consortium Americas

Notice is hereby given that, on August 1, 2019, pursuant to Section 6(a) of the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993, 15 U.S.C. 4301 *et seq.* (“the Act”), Southwest Research Institute—Cooperative Research Group on ROS-Industrial Consortium-Americas (“RIC-Americas”) has filed written notifications simultaneously with the Attorney General and the Federal Trade Commission disclosing changes in its membership. The notifications were filed for the purpose of extending the Act’s provisions limiting the recovery of antitrust plaintiffs to actual damages under specified circumstances. Specifically, Intel, Santa Clara, CA; Mathworks, Inc., Natick, MA, and Canonical Group Limited, London, ENGLAND, have been added as parties to this venture.

Also, BMW AG, Munich, GERMANY; EWI, Columbus, OH, and Vehicle Technologies, Inc., Trenton, NJ, have withdrawn as parties to this venture.

No other changes have been made in either the membership or planned activity of the group research project.

Membership in this group research project remains open, and RIC-Americas intends to file additional written notifications disclosing all changes in membership.

On April 30, 2014, RIC-Americas filed its original notification pursuant to Section 6(a) of the Act. The Department of Justice published a notice in the **Federal Register** pursuant to Section 6(b) of the Act on June 9, 2014 (79 FR 32999).

The last notification was filed with the Department on June 19, 2019. A notice was published in the **Federal Register** pursuant to Section 6(b) of the Act on August 1, 2019 (84 FR 37680).

Suzanne Morris,

Chief, Premerger and Division Statistics Unit, Antitrust Division.

[FR Doc. 2019-19055 Filed 9-3-19; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4410-11-P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Antitrust Division

Notice Pursuant to the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993—National Armaments Consortium

Notice is hereby given that, on April 8, 2019, pursuant to Section 6(a) of the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993, 15 U.S.C. 4301 *et seq.* (“the Act”), National Armaments Consortium (“NAC”) has filed written notifications simultaneously with the Attorney General and the Federal Trade Commission disclosing changes in its membership. The notifications were filed for the purpose of extending the Act’s provisions limiting the recovery of antitrust plaintiffs to actual damages under specified circumstances. Specifically, 1st Edge LLC, Huntsville, AL; 300 Below, Inc., Decatur, IL; 3rd Millennium Group, LLC, Boxborough, MA; A.T. Kearney Public Sector and Defense Services, LLC, Arlington, VA; ArmorWorks Enterprises, Inc., Chandler, AZ; Black River Systems Company, Inc., Utica, NY; Converged Security Solutions, LLC, Reston, VA; Corficient Engineering Solutions Inc., Lake Hopatcong, NJ; Crossflow Technologies, Inc., Albertville, AL; DRS Network & Imaging Systems, LLC, Huntsville, AL; Eastern Auto, Inc., Farmingdale, NJ; Envention LLC, Huntsville, AL; Frontier Technology Inc., Beaver Creek, OH; General Technology Systems LLC, Boston, MA; Hart Scientific Consulting International, Tucson, AZ; Heron Systems Incorporated, California, MD; Hy-Tek Manufacturing Company, Inc., Sugar